
  
 

 
 

Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond 
Meeting Notice February 22, 2024 

 
 

 
WHAT:       The City of Richmond’s Economic Development Authority will hold its 
 February Board Meeting. 
 
WHEN:          Thursday, February 22, 2024, at 5:00 P.M. 
 
WHERE:     Main Street Station, 1500 East Main Street, 3rd floor Conference Room 
 
CONTACT:  Glenna Chung at (804) 646-1507 or Glenna.Chung@rva.gov. 
 

For more information about The City of Richmond’s Economic Development Authority (EDA),  
Visit:  http://www.richmondeda.com 

 
 

mailto:Glenna.Chung@rva.gov
http://www.richmondeda.com/


Agenda 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND 
BOARD MEETING  FEBRUARY 22, 2024 

AGENDA 
 

 
I.  Call to Order 

A. Public Meeting Disclosure 

II. Comment (Maximum of Three Minutes Per Person) 

III. Meeting Minutes 
A. Meeting Minutes – January Board Meeting 

IV.    Committee Reports 
A. Audit and Finance Committee 

a. January Financial Report 
 

V. New Business 
A. Stone Brewery Account Policy 

 
VI. Executive Session 

 
A. To discuss the disposition of publicly held real property located at 2401 West Leigh 

Street and contracts involving the expenditure of public funds related to such 
disposition because such discussion in open session would adversely affect the 
bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the Economic Development Authority. 
 

VII. Discussion Items 
A. Performance Grant Update 
B. Update on 2401 West Leigh Street Facility Operations and Maintenance  

VIII. Report of the Officers 
A. Report of the Chairman 
B. Report of the Secretary 

IX. Other Business 

X. Adjournment 

Upcoming Meetings 
EDA Board Committee Meeting – March 28, 2024 



Meeting Minutes 

 



Economic Development Authority (EDA) of the City of Richmond, Virginia  
Board Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, January 25, 2024 
 
 
Members present: 

Nupa Agarwal, Vice-Chairperson 
Evan Feinman 
Jer’Mykeal McCoy 
Nathan Hughes 
 
Others present: 

Bonnie Ashley – City of Richmond, City Attorney’s Office  
Leonard Sledge – Department of Economic Development 
Katie McConnell – Department of Economic Development 
Robert Cappellanti – Department of Economic Development 
Rick Winston – Department of Economic Development 
Glenna Chung – Department of Economic Development 
Beth D’Arcy – BHD Agency 
Lisa Jones – A. G. Reese & Associates 
Jonathan Spiers – BizSense  
 
Call to Order: 

Ms. Agarwal called the meeting to order at 5:14pm and Ms. Chung started recording the meeting. 
 
Public Comments: 

No public comments were received via email, phone, or otherwise by staff. Mr. Sledge read the 
public disclaimer.  
 
Approval of Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 

Mr. Sledge requested the Board to consider a motion to adopt the minutes of the December 21, 
2023 Special Called Board Meeting as stated.  Mr. Feinman moved to accept the minutes. Mr. 
Hughes seconded the motion. The Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Committee Reports: 

Audit and Finance Committee – Mr. Nathan Hughes 

Mr. Hughes announced the Audit and Finance Committee did not meet this month due to not 
having a quorum. 

November and December Financial Reports – Ms. Lisa Jones 



Ms. Jones reviewed the EDA Financial Reports for both November and December.  

First, Ms. Jones reported the Stone Brewery account had a net income year-to-date of $191,743 
for November. As of December, the net income year-to-date was $231,327, which was $42k ahead 
of budget. No unusual transactions. 

Next, Ms. Jones reported the EDA Operations account had a net income year-to-date of $1,034,736 
for November. As of December, the income year-to-date was $576,062, which was $562k ahead 
of budget. Ms. Jones reviewed the major activity on the account. 

Lastly, Ms. Jones reported the Leigh Street Operations account had a net income year-to-date of 
$57,227 for November. As of December, the net income year-to-date was $53,492, which was 
$139.5k ahead of budget. ASM transferred $100k to the account. 

There was no unusual loan activity. 

Mr. Sledge requested the Board to consider a motion to approve the November and December 
2023 financial statements for the Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond, 
Virginia. Mr. Hughes moved to accept the financial statements. Mr. McCoy seconded the motion. 
The Motion passed unanimously. 
 
New Business: 

Amended and Restated Declaration of Westhampton Condominiums – Ms. Bonnie Ashley 

Ms. Ashley explained that the Amended and Restated Declaration of Westhampton 
Condominiums and the Updated Estoppel Certificate are required to proceed to the next stage of 
development to completion. This ensures that the lenders are satisfied, and the developers are in 
compliance. 

Mr. Sledge requested the Board to consider a motion to authorize the Board Chair, in consultation 
with legal counsel, to execute the Amended and Restated Declaration of Westhampton 
Condominium between the Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond, 
Westhampton Condominium Owners Association Inc., and Bon Secours – St. Mary's Hospital of 
Richmond LLC. Mr. Feinman made the motion. Mr. McCoy seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

Updated Estoppel Certificate for Westhampton Project 

Mr. Sledge requested the Board to consider a motion to authorize the Board Chair, in consultation 
with legal counsel, to execute the Estoppel Certificate by the Economic Development Authority 
of the City of Richmond for the West Hampton Project for the benefit of TRP II Westhampton 
LLC, Virginia Credit Union, Inc., and Bon Secours. Mr. Feinman made the motion. Mr. McCoy 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

Performance Agreement between the City, Alacer Corp. (Haleon), and the EDA – Ms. Katie 
McConnell 
 
In October 2019, the City of Richmond, in collaboration with the Virginia Economic 
Development Partnership (VEDP), announced the expansion of the GlaxoSmithKline Consumer 
Healthcare (Alacer Corp.) research and development facility at 1211 Sherwood Avenue. Since 



the announcement, the company’s corporate structure has changed, and it is now known as 
Haleon (Alacer Corp.). Per the Commonwealth’s Development Opportunity Fund Performance 
Agreement approved by City Council and the EDA in 2022, the City is required to provide a 1:1 
match for the state’s incentive, which it will do between a combination of an existing grant, in-
kind services, and a post-performance grant. Ms. McConnell presented the performance 
agreement between the City, the EDA, and Alacer Corp for the local post-performance grant, 
which City Council approved at the January 8, 2024, City Council Meeting.  
 
Mr. Sledge requested the Board to consider a motion to authorize the Board Chair to execute the 
Performance Agreement between the City of Richmond, Alacer Corp., and the Economic 
Development Authority of the City of Richmond, for the purpose of providing the balance of the 
local match funds to Alacer Corp. through a grant from the Economic Development Authority of 
the City of Richmond in accordance with a Commonwealth’s Development Opportunity Fund 
Performance Agreement as an incentive to improve, equip, and operate a research and 
development facility at 1211 Sherwood Avenue in the city of Richmond. Mr. Feinman made the 
motion. Mr. McCoy seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

EDA Credit Card – Mr. Leonard Sledge 

Mr. Sledge shared that EDA does not have a credit card to facilitate or carry out the business of 
the Authority. In the absence of writing a check, due to time constraints, staff has been using their 
personal credit cards and then appropriately requesting reimbursement through EDA, providing 
the necessary documentation. This is not a sustainable practice.  

Mr. Sledge requested the Board to consider a motion to authorize the Executive Director to, on 
behalf of the EDA, identify, apply for, and enter into any necessary contract to secure a credit card 
account for the EDA to be used for EDA expenses in accordance with the EDA’s procurement 
policies. Mr. Hughes made the motion. Mr. McCoy seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Discussion Items: 

Update on 2401 West Leigh Street Facility Operations and Maintenance – Mr. Leonard 
Sledge 

Mr. Sledge provided a brief overview of the Facility. The Department of Parks and Recreation are 
a tremendous resource. The park hours have been adjusted to 9:00-4:30pm, 7 days a week. Mr. 
Sledge is currently the sole person who decides if the park is open or closed due to inclement 
weather conditions. ASM has closed out all accounts and transferred funds to the EDA. Ms. Bonnie 
Ashley has been handling all agreements on behalf of the EDA.  

 
Report to the Officers: 

Report of the Chairman – Ms. Nupa Agarwal 
 
Ms. Agarwal reported that she nor Mr. John Molster have any updates to report.  



 
Report of the Secretary – Mr. Leonard Sledge 
 
Mr. Sledge had a few updates to report. He reminded the Board to send in their updated Conflict 
of Interest Filing to the Clerk’s Office. The EDA will be scheduling a mid-year touch point with 
its auditors, which will include Mr. Jéron Crooks and Ms. Lisa Jones. The EDA will be renewing 
their contract with A. G. Reese & Associates for 2024 for accounting services. The Amphitheater 
Groundbreaking happened on January 24th. The Mayor’s State of the City will be held on January 
30th at the Science Museum. Mr. Sledge asked if anyone on the Board would like to attend the 
Inter-City Visit in Atlanta this April/May. 
 
Other Business 

No other business discussed. 
 
Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 6:00pm and Ms. Chung stopped recording. 
        

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 

Secretary to the meeting 
 
Approved: 
 
 
 
John Molster, Chair 
 



EDA January Financial Report 

 























Stone Brewery Account Policy 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND  
 

STONE BREWERY PROJECT FUND POLICY 
DRAFT: February 22, 2024 

 

 

Policy Purpose  
 
The Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond (“Authority”) derives revenue from the leasing 
and operations of the Stone Brewery project Facilities and Sites, as defined in the Stone Brewery Cooperation 
Agreement (“Cooperation Agreement”), as Amended, dated March 2, 2015. The revenue, including any 
interest or income earned, is accrued in a Stone Brewery Project Fund (“Project Fund”).  
 
The purpose of this Stone Brewery Project Fund Policy (“Policy”) is (i) to ensure that there are sufficient 
resources available for annual debt service payments and the capital, operational, and administrative costs 
related to the Stone Brewery Facilities and Sites, and (ii) to define when the Project Fund may be used by the 
Authority to support other economic development activities and projects in the City of Richmond. 
 
Eligible Uses for the Project Fund 
 
In accordance with the provisions in the First Amendment to the Stone Brewery Cooperation Agreement 
approved by the Authority on December 21, 2023, and City Council on January 8, 2024, the following are 
Eligible Uses that the Project Fund may be used for, in addition to paying the annual debt service. 
 

(i) Capital, operating, and administrative costs relating to the Facilities and the Sites, including but not 
limited to costs associated with the acquisition of land or other property interests necessary or 
desirable for the construction, leasing, and operation of the Facilities at the Sites; 

(ii) Other economic development activities and projects in the City of Richmond; and 

(iii) Staff support for economic development activities and projects. 
  
Use of Project Fund to Support Other Economic Development Activities and Projects 
 
Funds in excess of an amount equal to 175% of the annual debt service for the Facilities and Sites may be used 
for Eligible Uses (ii) and (iii). The Executive Director has the administrative authority to allocate funds from the 
Project Fund to meet the Authority’s obligations for Eligible Uses (ii) and (iii). Such allocation will be reflected 
in the financial statements of the Authority and available for review in the normal course of business.  
 



1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO  
STONE BREWERY COOPERATION AGREEMENT, AS AMENDED, 

DATED MARCH 2, 2015 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA AND  

THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 

 
This First Amendment to the Stone Brewery Cooperation Agreement (“Cooperation 

Agreement”), As Amended, dated March 2, 2015, is entered into between the City of Richmond, 
Virginia, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the 
“City”), and the Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond, Virginia, a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Authority”) pursuant to Section 4.6 of the 
Cooperation Agreement.  The parties, intending to be legally bound and for valuable consideration, 
agree as follows: 

 
1. The City and the Authority desire to delete Section 3.4.4.4 in its entirety and replace it with 
the following: 
 

3.4.4.4  Revenues Net of City Investment.  Provided the revenues derived by the 
Authority from the leasing and operation of the Facilities at the Sites by the 
Company allow the repayment of the City Outlay, in accordance with the provisions 
of section 3.4.4.2 of this Agreement, all additional revenues received by the 
Authority, including any interest or income earned on the Project Fund, shall be the 
property of the Authority to be used only for (i) capital, operating, and 
administrative costs relating to the Facilities and the Sites, including but not limited 
to costs associated with acquisition of land or other property interests necessary or 
desirable for the construction, leasing, and operation of the Facilities at the Sites;  
(ii) other economic development activities and projects and activities in the City of 
Richmond; and (iii) staff support for economic development activities and projects.   
 

2. Except as specifically modified in this First Amendment, all other provisions of the 
Cooperation Agreement remain the same.  Defined terms used in this amendment have the 
meanings ascribed to them in the Cooperation Agreement.  If any of the terms of this Amendment 
conflict with the Cooperation Agreement, the terms of this Amendment control. 
 
The duly authorized representatives of the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective 
on the date indicated below. 
 

 
CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 
a municipal corporation and political subdivision of 
the Commonwealth of Virginia 
 
 
By:   
 Chief Administrative Officer 



2 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  

City Attorney 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 
a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia 
 
 
 
By:   
 Chairman 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  

Bonnie M. Ashley 
General Counsel to the Authority 

 
 
 





























Performance Grant Update 



Economic Development 
Performance Grant Update

Richmond City Council
Finance and Economic Development Standing Committee 
February 15, 2024



Real Results: FY 2020 – FY 2024 YTD

2

$3.61 Billion
Announced Capital Investment

4,481 Jobs
Announced New Jobs



Economic Development Performance Grants

• Used to secure a business attraction or expansion 
project or to induce a critical redevelopment project

• Tailored to the specific project needs and a project's 
positive economic impact in Richmond

• Often used to match state incentives, most commonly 
the Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund

• The City prioritizes leveraging in-kind matches and existing 
economic development programs (CARE, Enterprise Zone, BPOL 
Exemption, etc.) 

• Each project has a performance agreement approved by 
City Council and the Economic Development Authority 

• A company does not receive funds until it has met 
certain milestones and performance targets

3



Local Performance 
Grants Paid1 $1.8 M
Capital 
Investment2 $63.8 M

FY 2020 – FY 2024 YTD

Between FY 2020 and FY 2024 year-to-date, capital investment to local performance 
grant expenditures had a 36:1 ratio.

(1) Total payments FY 2020 – FY 2024 year to date.
(2) Reflects the capital investment realized in FY 2020 –  FY 2024 YTD for performance 
grant projects that were active during FY 2020 –FY 2024 YTD. If the capital investment 
for an active project occurred before FY 2020, it was not included in the total.

4



Performance Grants Current Status 

Project Name Status
PPD/Thermo Fisher Anticipated (introduction in Q3 FY 2024)
CoStar Anticipated (introduction in Q3 FY 2024)
Richmond Amphitheater Active
Alacer Corp./Haleon Active
RVA Street Foodies* Active
River City Cider* Active
400 Hull Street/Lynx Ventures Active
Gateway Plaza/Clayco/CRG Active
7000 Carnation Active (affordable housing)
Afton Avenue Apartments Active (affordable housing)
Bainbridge Street Senior Apartments Active (affordable housing)
700 West 44th Apartments Active (affordable housing)
The View at Belle Isle Apartments Active (affordable housing)
Oak Grove Active (affordable housing)
Walmsley Gardens Active (affordable housing)
Stone Brewing Close out in process
Pfizer/GSK Close out in process
Blue Bee Cider* Close out in process
Thomson Reuters* Closed out, FY 2021
Owens & Minor Medical Closed out, FY 2020
Aditxt Therapeutics* Canceled, FY 2024
CarLotz Canceled, FY 2023
Vytal Studios Canceled, FY 2023

The following projects were 
active at some point during 
FY 2020 – FY 2024.

Active – Project is within its performance period, 
and staff is monitoring performance targets and 
managing reporting and payments.

Anticipated – Project was publicly announced, 
and performance agreements will be introduced to 
City Council.

Close out in process – Project’s final 
administrative processes are underway.

Closed out – Performance period finished, and 
all reporting and payments complete.

Canceled – Performance agreement was 
canceled.

*Did not include a City-funded performance grant. Local matching funds provided through other programs. 

Status Descriptions

5



Looking Ahead

Create best-in-class 
incentive management program

MANAGE

• New return on investment (ROI) 
model to better estimate the 
economic impact of projects

• Dedicated staff resources for 
grant management

• Technology to increase 
efficiency and long-term 
tracking of projects

INNOVATE

• Ensure the incentive toolbox 
remains competitive and aligned 
with target industries and 
redevelopment goals

• Continue to use incentives as a  
mechanism to create opportunities 
for minority businesses, high-wage 
jobs, and investments in 
underserved areas  

• Leverage performance grants in 
new ways
• Affordable Housing Performance 

Grants: 7 approved projects that 
will create 1,231 new units of 
affordable housing

Stimulate new business investment 
and job growth

EXECUTE
Solidify major announcements with 

performance agreements  

• Thermo Fisher / PPD
• Business attraction project
• $4.7 M capital investment
• 48 new jobs

• CoStar
• Business expansion project
• $460.5 M capital investment
• 1,984 new jobs

6



Thank You

7



Update on 2401 West Leigh Street 
Facility Operations & Maintenance 


	1 - EDA Board Meeting Disclosure
	2 - Divider - EDA Board Agenda
	3 - EDA Board Agenda
	4 - Divider - Meeting Minutes
	5 - January 25, 2024 Meeting Minutes
	Members present:
	Others present:
	Call to Order:
	Public Comments:
	Approval of Minutes of the Previous Meeting:
	Committee Reports:
	New Business:
	Discussion Items:
	Report to the Officers:
	Other Business
	Adjournment

	6 - Divider - EDA Financial Report
	7 - EDA Financial Report
	8 - Divider - Stone Brewery Account Policy
	9 - Stone Brewery Account Policy
	9 - Stone Brewery Account Policy
	9 - Stone Brewery First Amendment

	10 - Divider - Leigh Street Transfer
	11 - Divider - Amendment to Bon Secours Lease
	12 - Divider - Performance Grant Update
	13 - Performance Grant Agreement Update
	Economic Development �Performance Grant Update
	Real Results: FY 2020 – FY 2024 YTD
	Economic Development Performance Grants
	FY 2020 – FY 2024 YTD
	Performance Grants Current Status 
	Looking Ahead
	Thank You

	14 - Divider - Update on 2401 West Leigh Street Facility Operations & Maintenance



